
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motor Vehicle Crime 
Prevention Authority 

 

Board Meeting 
Houston, Texas 

December 7, 2023 
 

 

   

 

4000 Jackson Avenue 
Austin Texas, 78731 

www.txwatchyourcar.com 



Page intentionally left blank.



AGENDA 
BOARD MEETING 

MOTOR VEHICLE CRIME PREVENTION AUTHORITY 
HILTON HOUSTON POST OAK BY THE GALLERIA 

2001 POST OAK BOULEVARD 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77056 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 7, 2023 
9:00 A.M. 

Link to December 7, 2023, MVCPA Board Meeting Documents (under Calendar tab): 
https://www.txdmv.gov/about-us/MVCPA 

All agenda items are subject to possible discussion, questions, consideration, and 
action by the Board of the Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority (Board). Agenda 
item numbers are assigned for ease of reference only and do not necessarily reflect the 
order of their consideration by the Board. Presentations may be made by the identified 
staff, Board member, or other personnel as needed. The Board reserves the right to 
discuss any items in closed session where authorized by the Open Meetings Act. 

1. Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum

2. Pledges of Allegiance – U.S. and Texas

3. Chair's Reports – Chairman Rodriguez
A. Approval of Transcript as Minutes (August 23, 2023) (ACTION ITEM)
B. Chair’s Report

4. MVCPA Director’s Report – Earl Pence (BRIEFINGS ONLY)
A. Recognitions
B. FY 2024 Staff Positions
C. Law Enforcement Training

RULE ADOPTIONS 
5. Chapter 57, Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority – David Richards

(ACTION ITEM)
New, §57.52
(Relating to MVCPA Fee Penalty for Late Payment or Filing of Report; Appeal)

6. Chapter 57, Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority – David Richards
(ACTION ITEM)
Amendment, §57.48
(Relating to MVCPA Fee – Motor Vehicle Years of Calculations)

WAIVER AND REFUND REQUESTS (ACTION ITEMS) 
7. State Farm Refund – Dan Price (ACTION ITEM)

i

https://www.txdmv.gov/about-us/MVCPA


Board of the Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 
Agenda: December 7, 2023 Page 2 

8. State Farm Waiver – Dan Price (ACTION ITEM)

9. Hanover Group Waiver – Dan Price (ACTION ITEM)

10. Consideration for Delegation of Authority to Director for Certain Waiver and
Refund Requests – Dan Price (ACTION ITEM)

BRIEFING AND ACTION ITEMS 
11. Grant Management Tracking System – Earl Pence & Julio Gonzalez

(BRIEFING ONLY)

12. FY 2024 MVCPA Budget – Dan Price, Glenna Bowman & Julio Gonzalez
(ACTION ITEM)

13. Presentation by Flock – Business Model (BRIEFING ONLY)

14. Consideration and Possible Approval of FLOCK MAG Grant Payments to
Grantees – Dan Price & Julio Gonzalez (ACTION ITEM)

15. Senate Bill 224 Plan of Operation – Earl Pence, Dan Price, Glenna Bowman, &
Julio Gonzalez
A. Budget Allocation (ACTION ITEM)
B. Partner State Agency’s Resource Needs (BRIEFING ITEM)
C. Grantee Resource Needs (BRIEFING ITEM)
D. Funding Mechanism (BRIEFING ITEM)
E. Meeting Frequency (ACTION ITEM)

16. FY 2024 MVCPA Conference Update – Yessenia Benavides (BRIEFING ONLY)

CLOSED SESSION 
17. The Board may enter into closed session under one or more of the

following provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, Government Code
Chapter 551:

Section 551.071 - Consultation with and advice from legal counsel regarding:
- pending or contemplated litigation, or a settlement offer;
- a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas
clearly conflicts with Government Code Chapter 551; or
any item on this agenda.

Section 551.074 - Personnel matters. 
- Discussion relating to the appointment, employment, evaluation,

ii



Board of the Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 
Agenda: December 7, 2023 Page 3 

reassignment, duties, discipline, and dismissal of personnel. 

Section 551.076 - Deliberation Regarding Security Devices or Security Audits. 
- the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security
personnel or devices; or
- a security audit.

Section 551.089 - Deliberation Regarding Security Devices or Security Audits. 
- security assessments or deployments relating to information resources
technology;
- network security information as described by Government Code Section
2059.055(b); or
- the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security personnel,
critical infrastructure, or security devices.

18. Action Items from Closed Session

19. Public Comment

20. Adjournment

The Board will allow an open comment period to receive public comment on any 
agenda item or other matter that is under the jurisdiction of the Board. No action will be 
taken on matters that are not part of the agenda for the meeting. For subjects that are 
not otherwise part of the agenda for the meeting, Board members may respond in 
accordance with Government Code §551.042 and consider the feasibility of placing the 
matter on the agenda for a future meeting. 

If you would like to comment on any agenda item (including an open comment under 
the agenda item for Public Comment), you must complete a speaker's form at the 
registration table prior to the agenda item being taken up by the Board. 

Public comment will only be accepted in person. Each speaker will be limited to three 
minutes, and time allotted to one speaker may not be reassigned to another speaker. 

Any individual with a disability who plans to attend this meeting and requires auxiliary 
aids or services should notify the department as far in advance as possible, but no less 
than two days in advance, so that appropriate arrangements can be made. Contact 
David Richards by telephone at (512) 465-1423. 

I certify that I have reviewed this document and that it conforms to all applicable Texas 
Register filing requirements. 

CERTIFYING OFFICIAL: David Richards, General Counsel, (512) 465-1423. 

iii



Board of the Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 
Agenda: December 7, 2023 Page 4 

iv



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023  

Subject: Table of Contents 

Agenda 
Item 

Document Page No. 

Agenda i 
1 Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum 1 
2 Pledges of Allegiance – U.S. and Texas 2 

3.A Approval of Transcripts as Minutes (August 23, 2023) (ACTION ITEM) 3 
4.A Recognitions (BRIEFING ONLY) 4 
4.B FY 2024 Staff Positions (BRIEFING ONLY) 5 
4.C Law Enforcement Training (BRIEFING ONLY) 6 

5 Chapter 57, Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority (ACTION ITEM) 
New, §57.52 
(Relating to MVCPA Fee Penalty for Late Payment or Filing of Report; Appeal) 

7 

6 Chapter 57, Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority (ACTION ITEM) 
Amendment, §57.48 
(Relating to MVCPA Fee - Motor Vehicle Years of Calculations) 

12 

7 State Farm Refund - Dan Price (ACTION ITEM) 17 
8 State Farm Waiver - Dan Price (ACTION ITEM) 25 
9 Hanover Group Waiver - Dan Price (ACTION ITEM) 30 

10 Consideration for Delegation of Authority to Director for Certain Waiver and Refund 
Requests - Dan Price (ACTION ITEM) 

37 

11 Grant Management Tracking System – Earl Pence & Julio Gonzalez (BRIEFING ONLY) 38 
12 FY 2024 MVCPA Budget (ACTION ITEM) 39 
14 Consideration and Possible Approval of FLOCK MAG Grant Payments to Grantees – Dan 

Price & Julio Gonzalez (ACTION ITEM) 
41 

15.A Budget Allocation – Dan Price, Glenna Bowman & Julio Gonzalez (ACTION ITEM) 43 
15.B Partner State Agency’s Resource Needs – Earl Pence & Julio Gonzalez (BRIEFING ITEM) 45 
15.C Grantee Resource Needs – Earl Pence & Julio Gonzalez (BRIEFING ITEM) 46 
15.D Funding Mechanism – Dan Price, Glenna Bowman & Julio Gonzalez (BRIEFING ITEM) 49 
15.E Meeting Frequency – Earl Pence & Julio Gonzalez (ACTION ITEM) 50 

16 FY 2024 MVCPA Conference Update – Yessenia Benavides (BRIEFING ONLY) 51 



Page intentionally left blank.



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023  

Agenda Item: 1 
Subject: Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum 

Present 

Assistant Chief Mike Rodriguez – Governor Designated Presiding Officer 
Law Enforcement Representative – Laredo, TX 

Kit Whitehill – Governor Appointed Board Member 
Insurance Consumer Representative – Coppell, TX 

Rebecca Cantu-Serrano – Governor Appointed Board Member 
Insurance Consumer Representative – Brownsville, TX 

Charla Brotherton – Governor Appointed Board Member 
Insurance Writer Representative – Fort Worth, TX 

Vacant – Governor Appointed Board Member 
Insurance Writer Representative  

Lieutenant Julio Gonzalez – Committee Chairman - Governor Appointed Board Member 
Law Enforcement Representative – Dallas, TX 

Major Sharon Jones – Ex Officio Member Designee for the Public Safety Director 
Texas Department of Public Safety 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

1



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023  

Agenda Item: 2 
Subject: Pledges of Allegiance – U.S. and Texas 

"I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America, and to the republic for which it stands, one nation under 
God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all." 

 "Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible." 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

2



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: MVCPA Staff 
Agenda Item: 3. A
Subject: Approval of Transcripts as Minutes (August 23, 2023) 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.  Motion to approve the transcripts. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
MVCPA staff emailed the August 23, 2023, Board Meeting Transcripts to all MVCPA board members on November 30, 
2023 for review. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

3



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  BRIEFING ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: Earl Pence, Interim Director  
Agenda Item: 4. A
Subject: Recognitions 

RECOMMENDATION 
Briefing Only.  

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
MVCPA Chairman will present the 2023 MVCPA Conference Awards. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
Due to a statewide lockdown at the Texas Department of Criminal Justice, Wynne Sign & Plastics was unable to provide 
MVCPA with the 2023 Conference Awards in time.   

List of 2023 MVCPA Conference Awards: 

Chairman’s Award - Laredo Auto Theft Task Force 
Taskforce of the Year - Houston Auto Crimes Task Force 
Taskforce of the Year - Harris County Sheriff’s Auto Theft Unit 
Taskforce Commander of the Year - Kenneth Richbourg, East Texas Auto Theft Task Force 
Investigator of the Year - Gregory Fregeau, Detective, Dallas Auto Theft Task Force 
Promotion to Captain - James Lint, Regional Auto Crimes Taskforce 
Promotion to Captain - Sandra “Sandi” Chapa, Harris County Sheriff’s Auto Theft Unit 
Retired - David Rowton, Northeast Texas Auto Theft Task Force 
Retired - Chief Investigator Jay Truelock, South Plains Auto Theft Task Force 
Retired - Howard Ray Johnson, Tarrant Regional Auto Crimes Taskforce 
Retired - Rene Cardona, Eagle Pass Auto Theft Task Force 
Partnership Award - Roland Luna, Texas Department of Motor Vehicles  
Partnership Award - Daniel Avitia, Texas Department of Motor Vehicles 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

4



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  BRIEFING ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: Earl Pence, Interim Director  
Agenda Item: 4. B
Subject: FY 2024 Staff Positions 

RECOMMENDATION 
Briefing Only.  

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Introduction of new staff members. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
MVCPA has recently added 2 new full-time employees. 

Justin White 
Justin comes to the MVCPA from the Texas Department of Motor Vehicle’s (TxDMV) Enforcement Division.  Justin was 
an Investigator with TxDMV for the past 19 years.  His duties were investigating consumer complaints on automobile 
dealerships, as well as investigating Texas temp tag abuse.  Recently, Justin has been instructing Fraudulent Document 
presentations at various Auto Theft courses. Before joining TxDMV, Justin was a police officer for the DeSoto Polce 
Department.  

Herman Adair 
Herman was a police officer for the Hays County Sheriff’s Office for the past 26 years. For the last 11 years, Herman was 
an investigator with the Sheriffs Combined Auto Theft Task Force performing 68-A inspections and specializing in light 
weight trailer VIN verification. Herman was most recently the president for the Texas Association of Auto Theft 
Investigators (TAVTI).  

As of last week, interviews were held for the position of Administrative Assistant and a candidate has been selected. 
Pending the passing of a background check, a conditional offer will be made thus bringing the MVCPA staff to 7 full-time 
employees. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

5



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  BRIEFING ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: Earl Pence, Interim Director 
Agenda Item: 4. C
Subject: Law Enforcement Training 

RECOMMENDATION 
Briefing Only. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Approval was given to the MVCPA by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE) to apply for a Training 
Provider Contract.   

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
Currently, MVCPA has their con�nuing educa�on hours reported to the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE) 
through the Enforcement Division of the Texas Department of Motor Vehicles.  MVCPA has been given approval by TCOLE 
to apply for their own Training Provider Contract.  The purpose of having a Training Provider Contract with TCOLE is for 
MVCPA to report their own con�nuing educa�on hours on courses taught by or hosted by MVCPA to law enforcement 
officers.   

MVCPA Director has appointed a member of the staff to serve as the Training Coordinator.  As part of the applica�on 
process, the Training Coordinator will create an Advisory Board and the MVCPA Director will appoint the members.   

The Training Coordinator will gather the required informa�on and apply for the training contract.  Upon submi�ng the 
applica�on and required documenta�on, the TCOLE Commission will determine whether to approve issuance of a 
contract.   

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

6



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: David Richards, General Counsel 
Agenda Item: 5 
Subject: Chapter 57, Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 

  New §57.52, Relating to MVCPA Fee Penalty for Late Payment or Filing of Report 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.  Approve the new section for publication in the Texas Register. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Authority proposes to amend Title 43 Texas Administrative Code, Part 3, Chapter 57, by adding new §57.52, 
concerning the assessment of a penalty for late payment of fee or filing of report, and an appeal procedure.  The new 
section is necessary to implement House Bill (HB) 3514 enacted during the 87th Legislature, Regular Session (2021).   

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The department has determined that for each year of the first five years the new section will be in effect, there will be 
no significant fiscal impact to state or local governments as a result of the enforcement or administration of the new 
section.  

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
New §57.52 implements HB 3514 enacted by the 87th Legislature, Regular Session (2021).  Transportation Code §1006.153, 
Fee Imposed on Insurers, provides “motor vehicle years of insurance” means the total number of years or portions of 
years during which a motor vehicle is covered by insurance.  Insurers are required to pay to the MVCPA a fee equal to $5 
multiplied by the total number of motor vehicle years of insurance policies delivered, issued for delivery, or renewed by 
the insurer.  New §57.52 provides that a penalty shall be imposed on an insurer for the delinquent payment of the required 
fee or the delinquent filing of the report of the fee that is required by rule.  HB 3514 provides the MVCPA with the ability 
to audit or contract for the audit of fees paid under Transportation Code §1006.153(b-2) and requires the MVCPA to 
establish procedures by rule that provide a right to an appeal to an insurer assessed a penalty or interest under this section.  
The final decision regarding an insurer’s appeal is decided by a majority vote of the MVCPA Board.  The appeal of the 
assessment of a penalty of interest is not a contested case under Government Code, Chapter 2001. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

7



TITLE 43. TRANSPORTATION Adopted Section 
Part 3. Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Page 1 of 2 
Chapter 57 – Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 

Exhibit A 

ADOPTION OF 1 

NEW 57 TAC §57.52 2 

 Penalty for Late Payment of Fee or Filing Report; Appeal 3 

4 
INTRODUCTION.  The Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority (Authority) adopts new 57 Texas 5 

Administrative Code (TAC) §57.52 concerning a penalty for late payment of fee or filing of report; appeal. 6 

The authority adopts §57.52 without changes to the proposed text as published in the September 8, 2023, 7 

issue of the Texas Register (48 TexReg 5018). The rules will not be republished. 8 

REASONED JUSTIFICATION. New §57.52 implements House Bill (HB) 3514 enacted during the 87th 9 

Legislature, Regular Session (2021). Transportation Code §1006.153, Fee Imposed on Insurers, provides 10 

“motor vehicle years of insurance” means the total number of years or portions of years during which a 11 

motor vehicle is covered by insurance.  Insurers are required to pay the authority a fee equal to 5 12 

multiplied by the total number of years of insurance policies delivered, issued for delivery, or renewed by 13 

the insurer.  Transportation Code §1006.153(b), requires insurers to pay the fee not later than: (1) March 14 

1 of each year for a policy delivered, issued, or renewed from July 1 to December 31 of the previous 15 

calendar year; and (2) August 1 of each year for a policy delivered, issued, or renewed from January 1 16 

through June 30 of that year. 17 

New §57.52 provides that a penalty shall be imposed on an insurer for the delinquent payment of the 18 

required fee or the delinquent filing of the report of a fee that is required by law.  The penalty shall be 19 

assessed in the same manner as the assessment of a penalty for a delinquent tax payment or a report 20 

under Tax Code §111.061(a).  Interest accrues in the manner described in Tax Code §111.060 on any fee 21 

paid after the due date required under Transportation Code §1006.153(b).   HB 3514 provides the 22 

authority with the ability to audit or contract for the audit of fees paid under Transportation Code 23 

§1006.153(b-2) and requires the authority to establish procedures by rule that provide a right of appeal24 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

8



TITLE 43. TRANSPORTATION Adopted Section 
Part 3. Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Page 2 of 2 
Chapter 57 – Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 

Exhibit A 

to an insurer assessed a penalty or interest under this section.  The final decision regarding an insurer’s 1 

appeal is decided by a majority vote of the authority.  The appeal of the assessment of a penalty or interest 2 

is not a contested case under Government Code, Chapter 2001. 3 

SUMMARY OF COMMENTS. 4 

No comments were received by the authority on this rule proposal. 5 

STATUTORY AUTHORITY. The department adopts new section §57.52 under Transportation Code 6 

§1006.101. Transportation Code §1006.101 authorizes the MVCPA to adopt rules that are necessary and7 

appropriate to implement the powers and duties of the authority. 8 

CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTE. Art. 4413(37) §6. 9 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

9



TITLE 43. TRANSPORTATION Adopted New Section 
Part 3. Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Page 1 of 2 
Chapter 57- Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGED/ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT 
DRAFT—FOR INTERNAL DISCUSSION ONLY 

Exhibit B 

TEXT. 1 

ADOPTED NEW SECTION 2 

43 TAC §57.52 3 

§57.52. Assessment of Penalty or Interest for Late Payment of the Fee, Filing of Report; Appeal.4 

(a) Penalty for Late Payment of Fee or Filing of Report.5 

(1) A penalty shall be assessed against an insurer for the delinquent payment of the fee6 

required under Transportation Code §1006.153(b-1) or the delinquent filing of any report of the fee 7 

required. 8 

(2) The penalty for the delinquent payment of the fee or late filing of the report shall be9 

assessed in accordance with Tax Code §111.061(a). 10 

(3) Interest accrues in the manner described in Tax Code §111.060 on any fee paid after11 

the due date. 12 

(b) Appeal Procedures.13 

(1) An insurer that is assessed a penalty or interest by the MVCPA under Transportation14 

Code §1006.153 may appeal the assessment by submitting an MVCPA prescribed form to the MVCPA 15 

Director within thirty (30) days of the date of the assessment. 16 

(2) An insurer shall provide the MVCPA with any written documentation or evidence17 

demonstrating the reasons for the late payment of the fee or late filing of the report. 18 

(3) The MVCPA shall make a final decision on an insurer’s appeal at a regularly scheduled19 

open meeting of the MVCPA board.  A final decision on the appeal shall be made by a majority vote of the 20 

MVCPA board. 21 

(4) An appeal under this section is not a contested case under Government Code, Chapter22 

2001. 23 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book                         December 7, 2023

10



TITLE 43. TRANSPORTATION Adopted New Section 
Part 3. Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Page 2 of 2 
Chapter 57- Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGED/ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT 
DRAFT—FOR INTERNAL DISCUSSION ONLY 

Exhibit B 

CERTIFICATION.  The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the proposal and 1 

found it to be within the state agency’s legal authority to adopt. 2 

 Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on M DD, YYYY. 3 

 4 

/s/ 5 
C. David Richards6 
General Counsel7 

8 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book                         December 7, 2023

11



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: David Richards, General Counsel 
Agenda Item: 6 
Subject: Chapter 57, Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 

  Amendment §57.48, MVCPA Fee – Motor Vehicle Years of Calculations 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.  Approve the proposed amended section for publication in the Texas Register. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Authority adopts amendments to Title 43 Texas Administrative Code, Part 3, Chapter 57, §57.48, concerning motor 
vehicle years of insurance calculations. 

The amendments are necessary to implement Senate Bill (SB) 224 enacted during the 88th Legislature, Regular Session 
(2023).  SB 224 provides that the (a)(1) single statutory fee payable on each motor vehicle for which the insurer provides 
insurance coverage during the calendar year regardless of the number of policy renewals is increased from $4 to $5; and 
(a)(4) all motor vehicle or automobile insurance policies as defined by Insurance Code §5.01(e), covering a motor vehicle 
shall be assessed the $5 fee.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The department has determined that for each year of the first five years the new amendments will be in effect, there 
will be no significant fiscal impact to state or local governments as a result of the enforcement or administration of the 
amendments. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
Amendments to §57.48(a)(1) and (a)(4) implement SB 224 enacted by the 88th Legislature, Regular Session, 2023. 
Transportation Code §1006.153, Fee Imposed on Insurers, provides “motor vehicle years of insurance” means the total 
number of years or portions of years during which a motor vehicle is covered by insurance.  Insurers are required to pay 
to the Authority a fee equal to $5 multiplied by the total number of motor vehicle years of insurance policies delivered, 
issued for delivery, or renewed by the insurer.   

Out of each fee collected under §1006.153, $1 shall be deposited to the credit of the general revenue fund to be used only 
for coordinated regulatory and law enforcement activities intended to detect and prevent catalytic converter theft in this 
state.  The money deposited to the credit of the general revenue may be appropriated to the authority for coordinated 
regulatory and law enforcement activities.   

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

12



TITLE 43. TRANSPORTATION Adopted Section 
Part 3. Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Page 1 of 2 
Chapter 57 – Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 

Exhibit A 

ADOPTION OF 1 

AMENDMENTS TO 2 

57 TAC §57.48. Motor Vehicle Years of Insurance Calculation 3 

4 
INTRODUCTION.  The Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority (Authority) adopts amendments to 57 5 

Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §57.48 concerning Motor Vehicle Years of Insurance Calculations. The 6 

authority adopts §57.48 without changes to the proposed text as published in the September 8, 2023, 7 

issue of the Texas Register (48 TexReg 5017 ). The rules will not be republished. 8 

REASONED JUSTIFICATION. The amended sections are necessary to implement Senate Bill (SB) 224 9 

enacted during the 88th Legislature, Regular Session (2023).  An amendment to Transportation Code 10 

§1006.153 increased the fee that insurers pay to the Authority.11 

Amendments to §57.48(a)(1) and §57.48(a)(4) increase the statutory fee from $4 payable on each 12 

motor vehicle for which the insurer provides insurance coverage during the calendar year regardless of 13 

the number of policy renewals to $5 payable on each motor vehicle for which the insurer provides 14 

insurance coverage during the calendar year regardless of the number of policy renewals to implement 15 

SB 224.  SB 224 requires the additional $1 of the fee to be deposited into the general revenue fund to be 16 

used for certain activities intended to detect and prevent catalytic converter theft. 17 

SUMMARY OF COMMENTS. 18 

The Authority received one comment from State Senator Carol Alvarado, the author of SB 224.  19 

Sen. Alvarado offered her appreciation to the Authority for engaging in rulemaking to further implement 20 

SB 224.  21 

Response:  The Authority agrees with the commenter and appreciates Sen. Alvarado’s support in enacting 22 

this legislation.  No changes were made as a result of this comment. 23 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

13



TITLE 43. TRANSPORTATION Adopted Section 
Part 3. Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Page 2 of 2 
Chapter 57 – Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 

Exhibit A 

STATUTORY AUTHORITY. The department adopts amendments to §57.48(a)(1) and §57.48(a)(4) under1 

Transportation Code §1006.101. Transportation Code §1006.101 authorizes the MVCPA to adopt rules 2 

that are necessary and appropriate to implement the powers and duties of the authority. 3 

CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTE. Art. 4413(37) §6. 4 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

14



TITLE 43. TRANSPORTATION Adopted Section 
Part 3. Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Page 1 of 2 
Chapter 57 - Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 
 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGED/ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT 
DRAFT—FOR INTERNAL DISCUSSION ONLY 

  Exhibit B 

TEXT. 1 

ADOPTION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2 

43 TAC §57.48 3 

§57.48. Motor Vehicle Years of Insurance Calculations. 4 

 (a) Each insurer, in calculating the fees established by Transportation Code §1006.153, shall 5 

comply with the following guidelines: 6 

  (1) The single statutory fee of $5 [$4] is payable on each motor vehicle for which the 7 

insurer provides insurance coverage during the calendar year regardless of the number of policy renewals; 8 

and 9 

  (2) When more than one insurer provides coverage for a motor vehicle during the 10 

calendar year, each insurer shall pay the statutory fee for that vehicle. 11 

  (3) “Motor vehicle insurance” as referred to in Transportation Code, Chapter 1006, means 12 

motor vehicle insurance as defined by the Insurance Code, Article 5.01(e).  This definition shall be used 13 

when calculating the fees under this section. 14 

  (4) All motor vehicle or automobile insurance policies as defined by Insurance Code, 15 

Article 5.01(e), covering a motor vehicle shall be assessed the $5 [$4] fee except mechanical breakdown 16 

policies, garage liability policies, non-resident policies and policies providing only non-ownership or hired 17 

auto coverages. 18 

 (b) The Insurance Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Fee Report form and Instructions for 19 

the Computation of the Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Fee of the Comptroller of Public 20 

Accounts are adopted by reference.  The form and instructions are available from the Comptroller of 21 

Public Accounts, Tax Administration, P.O. Box 149356, Austin, Texas 78714-9356. Each insurer shall use 22 

this form and follow those instructions when reporting assessment information to the Comptroller. 23 

                          MVCPA Board Meeting Book                         December 7, 2023

15



TITLE 43. TRANSPORTATION Adopted Section 
Part 3. Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Page 2 of 2 
Chapter 57 - Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGED/ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT 
DRAFT—FOR INTERNAL DISCUSSION ONLY 

Exhibit B 

CERTIFICATION.  The MVCPA certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the proposal and found it to be 1 

within the state agency’s legal authority to adopt. 2 

 Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on M DD, YYYY. 3 

 4 

/s/ 5 
C. David Richards, General Counsel6 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book                         December 7, 2023

16



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: Dan Price, Grant Auditor 
Agenda Item: 7 
Subject: State Farm Refund 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.  Approve State Farm Refunds in the total amount of $362,080. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Report on the MVCPA fee penalty and interest waivers, and requests for refund.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
On September 27, 2023, State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company requested a refund of $293,620 for the $4 
period of the first half of 2023 and $68,460 for the $5 period of the first half of 2023.  The Payment was made by State 
Farm to the account of State Farm Mutual Auto Insurance and should have been made to the account of State Farm 
Mutual Insurance (not Auto) on July 26, 2023. This misapplication was communicated to the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts on August 17, 2023. Subsequently another payment for this amount was made to State Farm Mutual Insurance 
(not Auto). This is why this refund amount is being requested.  

A waiver of penalties is also being requested and will be taken up next. 

A motion is requested. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

17



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

18



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

19



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

20



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

21



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

22



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

23



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

24



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: Dan Price, Grant Auditor 
Agenda Item: 8 
Subject: State Farm Waiver 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.  Deny State Farm Waiver in the total amount of $36,208. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Report on the MVCPA fee penalty and interest waivers, and requests for refunds. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
On September 26, 2023, State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company requested a refund of $293,620 for the $4 
period of the first half of 2023 and $68,460 for the $5 period of the first half of 2023.  The Payment was made by State 
Farm to the account of State Farm Mutual Auto Insurance and should have been made to the account of State Farm 
Mutual Insurance (not Auto) on July 26, 2023. This misapplication was communicated to the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts on August 17, 2023. Subsequently another payment for this amount was made to State Farm Mutual Insurance 
(not Auto).  

The Texas State Comptroller accessed a Penalty of $10% or $36,208 for non-payment of the MVCPA fee. This is why this 
waiver amount is being requested.  

Per the Comptroller’s office, “Please note, during 2021, the 4 different insurance taxes that we administer underwent an 
audit by the state auditor’s office. During the audit they found that the misapplication of payments, either to the wrong 
tax type, wrong tax year, or wrong taxpayer caused several issues, used state resources, and potentially left the state 
open to fraud. Also, the funds in several of the insurance taxes are dispersed to other state agencies. Therefore, 
misapplication of the funds may cause dispersal issues and/or have extenuating requirements for correction. Due to this, 
we will be limiting the number of transfers that we will be doing. Generally, when a payment is misapplied, an additional 
payment will need to be made before the due date to avoid penalties.” 

The additional payment was made after the due date. 

A motion is requested. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

25



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

26



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

27



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

28



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

29



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: Dan Price, Grant Auditor 
Agenda Item: 9 
Subject: Hanover Group Waiver 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.  Deny Hanover Group’s Six Waiver requests in the total amount of $4.26. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Report on the MVCPA fee penalty and interest waivers, and requests for refunds. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
From September 26 to October 19 the attached Email exchange occurred between the Hanover Companies finance 
office, The Texas State Comptrollers Miscellaneous Tax Section and MVCPA Staff. Hanover Group did not process the 
information Hanover had received related to the increased MVCPA fee from $4 to $5. Hanover used an old tax form 
which only had the $4 amount. 

Hanover was notified that the forms were improper and could not be accepted. Hanover filed amended forms for the 
correct amounts. When submitting the notification that Hanover was processing checks they asked, “is there any way 
the interest could be waived?” The Miscellaneous Tax Section submitted an email “Taxpayer request to wave interest” 
to MVCPA. Note: No request to wave any penalty was made. 

The $4.26 amount requested is below the Comptroller’s “tolerance” for an action item of $25.00, which is calculated to 
be the minimum cost to the state to issue a refund or collection letter. 

A motion is requested. 

HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANIES Penalty Interest
MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY 1.70 0.06
THE HANOVER CASUALTY COMPANY 3.10 0.12
ALLMERICA FINANCIAL BENEFIT INSURANCE COMPANY                 81.00 3.02
NOVA CASUALTY COMPANY 15.30 0.57
HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY THE   1.00 0.02
HANOVER AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 12.60 0.47

Total 114.70 4.26

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

30



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

31



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

32



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

33



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

34



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

35



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

36



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: Dan Price, Grant Auditor 
Agenda Item: 10 
Subject: Consideration for Delegation of Authority to Director for Certain Waiver and Refund Requests 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.  Approve Authority for MVCPA Director to approve Refund and Waiver requests in the amount of $2500.00 
or less. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Improve response times for insurance companies requests for MVCPA fee penalty and interest waivers, and requests for 
refunds. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
With the addition of penalties and waivers in the MVCPA collection process, there has been an increase in the number 
of Penalty and interest waiver requests.  The Comptroller’s standards are to respond to the majority of these requests 
within a week.  The MVCPA’s Board of Directors meeting availability does not allow for the number or frequency of 
these requests to be processed within the expectations set by the Comptroller.  The low dollar requests can be handled 
by the MVCPA Director with the Boards approval. 

A motion is requested. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

37



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  BRIEFING ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board 
From: Julio Gonzalez, Grants, Budget, and Reports Committee Chair / Earl Pence, Interim Director 
Agenda Item: 11 
Subject: Grant Management Tracking System 

RECOMMENDATION 
Briefing Only. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Update on Grant Management and Tracking System and future grant management information system needs. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
Initially developed in 2017, the Grant Management and Tracking System (GMTS) is supported and maintained by Texas 
A&M University.  The online system provides end-to-end reporting for the Taskforce grants including the annual 
application process, financial and progress reporting, and year-end close-out reporting.  The MAG Grant is also 
administered via GMTS. 

The March 2023 State Auditor’s Office (SAO) report rated MVCPA’s IT system as high risk.  SAO found that MVCPA did 
not have policies and procedures for administering the Grant Management and Tracking System (GMTS).  The report 
outlined the following deficiencies related to GMTS: 

• 19% of the user accounts sampled were for former employees or board members no longer associated with
MVCPA.

• While Texas A&M University, which administers GMTS, was found to have a formal backup and recovery plan as
required by state regulations, MVCPA lacked documented processes for reviewing the backup and recovery plan
or the Progress Reports that are provided quarterly.

• Recommendation for an individual with expertise in information technology to review the aforementioned
reports provided by Texas A&M.

The lead developer of GMTS retired from full-time employment with Texas A&M in June 2023.  The developer is 
currently available through Texas A&M on a consultative basis and is providing system support.  While continuing to 
utilize the current online system, staff requests feedback on exploring a different IT system to meet future grant 
management needs. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

38



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board of Directors 
From: Julio Gonzalez, Grants, Budget, and Reports Committee Chair / Dan Price, Auditor / Glenna Bowman, 

TxDMV Chief Financial Officer 
Agenda Item: 12 
Subject: FY 2024 MVCPA Budget 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.  Review and approve adjustments to the FY 2024 budget for meetings and conferences. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
To provide additional funds for board meetings and conferences. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
If approved, this item would move funds between line items of the budget to reflect additional amounts needed for 
meetings and conferences. The total budget would not change.  

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
The MVCPA Board has undertaken an initiative to hold meetings throughout the state. This initiative will require funds 
beyond the current budgeted amounts.  

FY24 Grants Budget was increased by $1,017,592 from FY23 Unexpended Balances.  

MVCPA Budget Category  Budget Expenditures Encumbrances Available Budget FY2024- SB224  
Budget % Available Budget

Grants  $ 22,879,972  $ (67,031)  $ 22,766,820  $              180,183 1%
Grants (UB from FY2023)  $ 1,017,592  $ -    $ -    $           1,017,592 100%
Advertising and Promotion  $ 152,642  $ -    $ -    $              152,642 100%
All Other Operating  $ 148,838  $ 4,538  $ 22,523  $              121,776 82%
Consumable Supplies  $ 2,500  $ -    $ -    $ 2,500 100%
Professional Fees & 
Services  $ 125,720  $ -    $ 26,845  $ 98,875 79%
Salaries and Personnel 
Costs  $ 870,549  $ 121,810  $ -    $              748,739 86%
Travel  $ 35,000  $ 3,908  $ -    $ 31,092 89%
Salaries and Personnel 
Costs- SB224  $ 314,983  $              314,983 

100%
Grants- SB224  $ 24,352,279  $ -    $ -    $         24,352,279 100%

Grand Total  $               49,900,075  $ 63,225  $ 22,816,188  $           2,353,400  $         24,667,262 54%

Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority AY 2024 as of 11/30/2023

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

39



FY23 Grants Budget was decreased by $1,017,592 to reflect FY23 Unexpended Balances carried forward to FY24.  

MVCPA Budget Category  Budget Expenditures Encumbrances Available Budget % Available Budget

Grants  $ 14,832,938  $ 8,752,318  $ 5,062,994  $           1,017,625 7%
Grants (UB to FY24)  $ (1,017,592)  $ -    $ -    $          (1,017,592) 100%
Advertising and Promotion  $ 1,843  $ 1,843  $ -    $ -   0%
All Other Operating  $ 20,790  $ 20,790  $ -    $ (0) 0%
Consumable Supplies  $ 943  $ 894  $ 49  $ 0 0%
Professional Fees & 
Services  $ 31,537  $ 13,992  $ 15,825  $ 1,720 5%
Salaries and Personnel 
Costs  $ 389,563  $ 389,513  $ -    $ 50 0%
Travel  $ 25,708  $ 25,708  $ -    $ -   0%

Grand Total  $               14,285,730  $ 9,205,059  $ 5,078,868  $ 1,803 0.01%

Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority AY 2023 as of 11/30/2023
MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

40



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board of Directors 
From: Julio Gonzalez, Grants, Budget, and Reports Committee Chair / Dan Price, Auditor 
Agenda Item: 14 
Subject: Consideration and Possible Approval of FLOCK MAG Grant Payments to Grantees 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item. Staff recommends approval to treat hardware and software as a service be treated for purposes of MAG 
Grants as if they were Leases. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
To discuss and seek approval to pay for LPR’s provided as a service vs. the previous lease approvals. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
During the review of documentation of MAG Grantee Records and after cofiring with Flock, MVCPA Staff determined 
that Flock did not sell nor offer for lease it’s equipment to anyone.  Flocks’ business model is for a “Hardware and 
Software as a Service” or “Infrastructure-as-a-Service“ Agreement. 

Per FASB 2023-01 Common Control Agreements : 
The fundamental differences between the Lease and Infrastructure-as-a-Service: 
Lease  
A contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property, plant, or equipment (an 
identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
Infrastructure-as-a-Service – control over the use of the identified asset 
The identified assets (i.e. the servers and the other equipment) are not being leased to Customer because Supplier, 
rather than Customer, controls their use. This conclusion is based on the following.  
Supplier controls how the identified assets are used. Even though the identified assets are fully dedicated to 
Customer’s services, limiting their potential uses to Supplier, the servers each have multiple roles they can play within 
the network architecture; for example, Server X1 could host Software X or Software Y, be configured to perform 
Function A or Function B, or process or store data. Customer, in contrast, has no rights to decide (or change), or prevent 
Supplier from changing (as long as the network services are not interrupted), how the servers are used. That is, although 
Customer decides how and when it uses the network, Customer’s decisions do not affect how each identified asset (i.e. 
each server or other piece of equipment) that comprises the network is used.  
Supplier controls when, whether and how much the identified assets are used. Supplier, at its sole discretion, may 
decide that an identified asset is extraneous to the network and remove it from network service to reduce 
operating/maintenance costs, or decide that the identified asset be employed to its full capacity. Customer, in contrast, 
has no right to change whether or when an identified asset is producing output because each identified asset is 
constantly performing its function within the network unless Supplier decides otherwise. Further, Customer cannot 
decide to specifically use an identified asset. Customer’s use of the network (e.g. accessing a particular hosted 
application or functionality or stored data) doesn’t necessarily employ, for example, Server X1 or Server X2. The network 
services permit Customer to use the network (e.g. access Application A, perform function B and store/transmit data), 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

41



but Customer has no right to decide that, for example, Server X1 will host Application A or Server X2 will perform 
function B. By choosing to, for example, access Application A, Customer does not also choose to use Server X1 because it 
is Supplier that decides (and can change) which of the identified servers (X1–X10) hosts Application A. Put another way, 
Customer’s decisions are about when, whether and how much to use the network, not one (or some) of the identified 
assets used to create the network.  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60
59

52

43

35 34
31

26

13 12

PROCESS STEP COMPLETIONS

MVCPA MAG Grant Status
as of November 10th 2023

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

42



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board of Directors 
From: Julio Gonzalez, Grants, Budget, and Reports Committee Chair / Dan Price, Auditor 
Agenda Item: 15. A. 1
Subject: Budget Allocation 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.  Staff recommends approval of a $100,000 budget allocation for SB224 Meetings. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
To discuss and seek approval to provide funds for FY2024 SB224 Meetings. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
Meetings are needed to plan and execute SB224. No budget has been approved for SB224 expenses to date. To support 
the planning and execution of SB224 activities, a budget allocation of $100,000 is being requested.  

This estimate is based on budgeting $20,000 per meeting for 5 meetings this Fiscal Year. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

43



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board of Directors 
From: Julio Gonzalez, Grants, Budget, and Reports Committee Chair / Dan Price, Auditor 
Agenda Item: 15. A. 2
Subject: Budget Allocation 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.  Staff recommends approval of a budget of $30,000 for SB 224 Software Development. 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
To discuss and seek approval to provide funds for FY2024 SB224 Software Development. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
A process is needed to collect and manage Financial and Operational information from other parties participating in 
SB224 activities. We anticipate that information will be needed to be processed in Q2 FY2024. 

It is anticipated that to meet short term requirements the existing TAMU GMTS be modified to meet the current needs. 

Staff is requesting the MVCPA Board to approve an initial budget of $30,000 to begin development of an information 
system to support SB224 activities. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

44



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  BRIEFING ITEM 

To: 
From: 

Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board of Directors 
Julio Gonzalez, Grants, Budget, and Reports Committee Chair / Earl Pence, Interim Director 

Agenda Item: 15. B
Subject: Partner State Agency’s Resource Needs 

RECOMMENDATION 
Briefing Only.   

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
To discuss and provide information on Partner State Agency’s Resource Needs for SB224. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
The purpose of this briefing is to discuss the requested additional manpower, equipment, and funding for the partner 
agencies as statutorily required by SB 224. 

Texas Department of Public Safety Requests: 
Two (2) full-time employee (FTE) analysts who would be responsible for monitoring all the activity reported by the MREs 
across the State to look for irregular or suspicious activity as well as providing logistical information and statistical data 
to investigators across the State. 

Four (4) FTE’s consisting of Special Agents assigned to DPS RSD whose duties would include the investigation, 
apprehension, and prosecution of those who are engaging in illegal activity relating to the mission of the Motor Vehicle 
Crime Prevention Authority.   

Texas Department of Motor Vehicles Enforcement Division Requests: 
Five (5) FTE’s and four (4) vehicles. Four of the FTE’s would be Compliance Specialist I’s and one FTE would be a 
Compliance Specialist III (Team Lead). The Compliance Specialists would be geographically distributed across the state 
with each specialist covering roughly a quarter of the state. These compliance specialists will be utilized to inspect the 
approximately 3,500 TxDMV licensees conducting salvage operations.  

Texas Department of Licensing and Regulatory Services Requests: 
No requests received as of 12/1/23. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

45



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  BRIEFING ITEM 

To: 
From: 

Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board of Directors 
Julio Gonzalez, Grants, Budget, and Reports Committee Chair / Earl Pence, Interim Director 

Agenda Item: 15. C
Subject: Grantee Resource Needs 

RECOMMENDATION 
Briefing Only.   

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
To discuss and provide information on Grantee Resource Needs for SB224. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
During the SB 224 workshop held in Dallas, Texas on 11/20/2023, presentations were made to the board and 
stakeholders by the following Grantees:  

• City of Dallas
• El Paso
• County of Harris
• City of Houston
• City of Laredo
• City of San Antonio

During the presentation from each Grantee, the most common requests from the presenters were: 
• License Plate Readers
• Prosecutors
• Additional Investigators/Analyst

A survey was sent on 11/29/23 to all MVCPA Taskforces.  The survey requested the assistance of taskforces to identify 
the needs in their communities to combat catalytic converter crimes.  Responses were received to help MVCPA identify 
the specific needs of their departments in order to prevent and successfully combat catalytic converter theft.  

Responses were received from 21 of the 24 MVCPA taskforces.  

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

46



Question: Please rank the following possible solutions, or provide your own suggestion, that would increase the 
successes of your Taskforce or LE Agency to combat catalytic converter crimes.  Please score the possible solutions with 
the greatest need of your agency. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

47



Question: Please rank the following equipment in order of most importance to your Taskforce or LE Agency.  Please 
score the equipment with the greatest need of your agency. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

48



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  BRIEFING ITEM 

To: 
From: 

Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board of Directors 
Julio Gonzalez, Grants, Budget, and Reports Committee Chair / Earl Pence, Interim Director 

Agenda Item: 15. D
Subject: Funding Mechanism 

RECOMMENDATION 
Briefing Only.   

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
To discuss and provide information on funding mechanisms for implementing SB224. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
The following funding mechanisms are available to MVCPA in partnership with TxDMV: 

1) Grants – MVCPA has express statutory authority to issue grants in its own name. MVCPA is authorized in statute
to provide grants to local law enforcement to combat motor vehicle theft, burglary from a motor vehicle and/or
fraud-related motor vehicle crime. SB 224 provides additional authority for MVCPA to provide funding to
combat catalytic converter theft in Texas.

2) Inter-Agency Contracts (IACs) – Contractual agreements between State of Texas agencies. MVCPA may use IACs
to formalize agreements to “coordinate efforts with the Department of Public Safety [and] the Texas
Department of Licensing and Regulation.”

3) Direct expenditures – Because MVCPA is administratively attached to TxDMV, the department may allocate
expenditures to MVCPA funding sources, as needed, to carry out the functions of the MVCPA.  Examples include
salaries and benefits, meeting and conference expenses, and other operating costs.

MVCPA Staff will consult with TxDMV’s finance and legal staff to determine what is the most appropriate funding 
mechanism for distributing funds and will bring these agreements to the MVCPA Board for approval, as required by 
statute or board policy. 

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

49



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  ACTION ITEM 

To: 
From: 

Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board of Directors 
Julio Gonzalez, Grants, Budget, and Reports Committee Chair / Earl Pence, Interim Director 

Agenda Item: 15. E
Subject: Meeting Frequency 

RECOMMENDATION 
Action Item.   

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
To discuss and approve frequency of meetings with partner agencies for SB224. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
MVCPA and partner agencies (TxDMV, DPS, TDLR) met at an SB 224 Workshop in Dallas, Texas on November 20, 2023.  

MVCPA proposed having frequent meetings with partner agencies to coordinate activities, sharing intelligence, 
compliance trends, investigative needs, and reporting related to the implementation of SB224.   

The suggested frequency of the meetings are as follows: 
• Meetings first 6 months (1-2 meetings per month)
• Meetings after 6 months (quarterly or as needed)

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

50



 Board Meeting Date:  12/7/2023    
  BRIEFING ITEM 

To: Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority Board of Directors 
From: Yessenia Benavides, Program Coordinator 
Agenda Item: 16 
Subject: FY 2024 MVCPA Conference Update 

RECOMMENDATION 
Briefing Only.   

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Discuss and provide an update concerning the July 2024 MVCPA Conference in Houston, Texas. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
N/A 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
A 2024 MVCPA Conference Committee Meeting was held remotely on October 19, 2023. 

Conference Location and Dates

•Hilton Houston Post Oak by the Galleria
•July 15 - July 19, 2024

Conference Theme

•Preparedness
•Recovery
•Adaptation

Conference Sub-Committees

•Awards & Recognition
•Sponsorship, Vendors, Photography and Chaplain
•Registration & Guest Services
•Logistics, Ambiance & Entertainment
•Program, Public Relations, and Guest Speakers
•Catering
•Security & Safety
•Volunteer Coordination

Sponsorship Levels

•Bronze: $1,500
•Silver: $2,500
•Gold: $5,000
•Platinum: $7,500

MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

51



MVCPA Board Meeting Book December 7, 2023

52


	6.2_MVCPA Proposal-Rule 57.48 Motor Vehicle Years of Insurance Calculation-amended v2 tm edits.pdf
	CERTIFICATION.  The MVCPA certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the proposal and found it to be within the state agency’s legal authority to adopt.

	5.2_MVCPA Proposal-Rule 57.52 Payment of Fee Report Appeal Procedures-new v1.pdf
	CERTIFICATION.  The agency certifies that legal counsel has reviewed the proposal and found it to be within the state agency’s legal authority to adopt.




